

# EDELBROCK QWIKDATA SYSTEMS

Catalog #91001 - Basic Package Catalog #91003 - Bracket Drag Racing Package Catalog #91004 - Import / Compact Drag Racing Package Catalog #91005 - Advanced Drag Racing Package Catalog #91007 - Circle Track / Road Racing Package



This QwikGuide manual has been included to provide all the information you need to get your QwikData Package installed and running quickly and easily.

For more detailed information about the QwikData system, refer to the QwikData Reference Manual on the QwikData CD ROM.

# Table of Contents

# SYSTEM INSTALLATION

Included Parts
Basic Package
Bracket Drag Racing Package
Import/Compact Drag Racing Package
Advanced Drag Racing Package
Circle Track/Road Racing Package
Installation of the QwikData Data Logger Unit
Pressure Sensors
Temperature Sensors
Exhaust Gas Temperature Sensors
TK-4 Thermocouple Converter Installation4
Wheel/Shaft Speed Sensors
Wiring Harness Installation and Connection4
Bracket Drag and Import/Compact Drag Racing Package Sensor Connections
Advanced Drag Racing Package Sensor Connections
Connection To Battery Power
Engine RPM Connection
Data Logging On/Off Switch
SOFTWARE INSTALLATION
FIRST TIME POWER-UP
Initializing the QwikData Setup
Sensor Calibration
Digital Sensor Calibration
Digital Channel Setup
Choosing Channel
Analog Inputs
Digital Inputs
Logic Signal
Grounding Type Switch
Low to High Signal
Channel Enable
Channel Calibration
Zero Analog Channels
Zero Accelerometers
Logging Setup
Lap Trigger Channel
Starting Trigger
Digital Starting Triggers
Analog Starting Triggers
Stopping Trigger
Digital Stopping Triggers

Analog Stopping Triggers
Digital Outputs
Graphing Setup
Channel Colors
Advanced Options
Chart Setup
Save Setup
Load Setup
Download Setup
Upload Setup
Using Realtime Graphing to Assist in System Checkout
Normal Analog Sensors
Position Sensors
RPM Inputs
Pure Digital Inputs
SYSTEM OPERATION
Viewing Real Time Data
Reset Memory
Manual Stop/Start
Choosing Channels for Display
Setting the Window Width
Uploading Data
Viewing Historical Data
Measuring the Length of Time Between Events
Changing the Channels Displayed
Viewing Data by Time or Distance
Viewing Data by Lap
Viewing Data as Lap Dependent or Cumulative
Zoom In / Zoom Out
Scroll or Pan the Graph
Overlaying a Secondary File
Cropping Data Files
Obtaining a Histogram
Printing a Graph
Export Data File to Text File
Restore Default Setup
Update Firmware
Connector Pin Out: Bracket/Import and Compact Drag Racing Systems
Connector Pin Out: Circle Track/Road Racing and Advanced Systems
Pin Assignments, Maximum Configuration
Qwikdata Jumper Configuration
Sensor and Option Part Numbers

#### SYSTEM INSTALLATION

# Included Parts

Unpack all the parts supplied with the package and verify that there are no parts missing.

Basic Package #91001	
----------------------	--

Your QwikData Basic Package should include the following items:

<u>Oty</u>	Part Description	Part No.
1	Basic QwikData Data Logger	91100
1		91103
1	Wheel/Shaft Speed Sensor.	91116
1pr	Speed Sensor Magnets	91117
1	QwikData Software & Documentation CD	37-91127

# Bracket Drag Racing Package #91003

Your QwikData Bracket Racing Drag Racing Package should include the following items:

<u>Oty</u>	Part Description	Part No.
1	Basic QwikData Data Logger	
1	Wiring Harness	
2		
2	Exhaust Gas Temp. Thermocouples	
2	General Purpose Thermocouples	
1	TK-4 Thermocouple Converter Box	
2	Thermocouple Extension Cables	
1	Wheel/Shaft Speed Sensor	
1pr		
1 <sup>.</sup>	QwikData Software & Documentation CD	

# Import / Compact Drag Racing Package #91004

Your QwikData Import / Compact Drag Racing Package should include the following items:

<u>Qty</u>	Part Description	Part No.
1	Basic QwikData Data Logger	
1	Wiring Harness	
2	0-100 psi Pressure Sensors	
4	Exhaust Gas Temp. Thermocouples	
1	TK-4 Thermocouple Converter Box	
1		
1pr	Speed Sensor Magnets	
1	QwikData Software & Documentation CD	

# Advanced Drag Racing Package #91005

Your QwikData Advanced Drag Racing Package should include the following items:

<u>Oty</u>	Part Description	<u>Part No</u> .
1	Advanced QwikData Data Logger	
1	Wiring Harness	
2	0-100 psi Pressure Sensors	
1	0-500 psi Pressure Transducer	
1	0-2500 psi Pressure Transducer	
8	Exhaust Gas Temp. Thermocouples	
3	General Purpose Thermocouples	
3	TK-4 Thermocouple Converter Box	
3	Thermocouple Extension Cables	
2	Wheel/Shaft Speed Sensor	
2 pr	Speed Sensor Magnets	
1	wikData Software & Documentation CD .	

Circle Track / Road Racing Package #91007				
Your QwikData Circle Track / Road Racing Package should include the following items:				
<u>Oty</u>	Part Description	Part No.		
1	Advanced QwikData Data Logger			
1				
1	String Potentiometer			
4	Linear Potentiometer			
1	Throttle Position Linear Potentiometer			
1				
2				
2 pr	Speed Sensor Magnets			
1	QwikData Software & Documentation CD			

#### Installation of the QwikData Data Logger Unit:

Important Notice: When installing data log unit avoid RF and or EMI signal interference and make sure all grounds are connected directly to the negative side of the battery. Keep sensor wiring away from ignition wires. Try to keep all data log unit wiring as far as possible from CD boxes and wiring. Do not mount the data log next to ignition box or ignition coils. You will want as much distance between the data log and these devices as possible. Thermocouples and thermocouple extension must also be kept away from ignition wires, ignition box and coils. If wires have to cross, try to have them cross at a right angle. Avoid paralleling Data log wires with any ignition wiring (Primary or Secondary).

As the QwikData accelerometers are mounted inside the data logger unit, the unit must be mounted in a particular orientation to obtain accurate acceleration data. The unit must be mounted approximately level and horizontal with the QwikData logo parallel to the centerline of the car. If possible, the box should be mounted along the centerline at the center of gravity of the car. Mounting in the cockpit in front of the shifter is often a convenient location. Mounting QwikData with the connectors facing the front of the car will display left turns and longitudinal acceleration as positive numbers (right turns and braking are displayed as negative numbers). Don't be overly concerned if you cannot meet these criteria as the measurement errors induced are not great and in general you should be more concerned with relative acceleration figures, not the absolute numbers. Although not required, some sort of vibration isolation is usually desirable to prevent noisy accelerometer readings due to vibration. Mount using high-density foam rubber under mounting screws. Velcro tape is also a good alternative as it allows the box to be easily removed and provides some vibration dampening.

#### Pressure Sensors

Five pressure sensors are available in pressure ranges:

- ① (-15) Vacuum Transducer
- ② 0-15 psi pressure sensors (Fuel pump) etc.
- ③ 0 100 psi pressure sensors (Oil) etc.
- ④ 0-500 psi pressure sensor (Trans Pressure) etc.
- ⑤ 0-2500 psi pressure sensor (Brakes or Nitrous) etc.

The sensors are provided with a male 1/8 NPT fitting that is compatible with most vehicles (pipe adapters can be used if a different thread size is needed). Note: Pressure sensors should not be mounted directly to the engine, as excessive vibration can destroy the sensors. Mount the sensors remotely with an aluminum block, and connect to the engine with small, flexible tubing.

#### Temperature Sensors

The temperature sensors provided in some QwikData packages are high quality thermocouple devices. Three thermocouples are provided to measure temperatures such as oil temperature and coolant temperature. These thermocouples are provided with 1/8 NPT compression fittings that can easily be installed in a similarly threaded hole. To install these thermocouples, thread the compression fitting into the hole and tighten the base of the fitting (not the compression nut) to prevent leaks. Insert the thermocouple into the hole and then tighten the compression nut until the thermocouple is secured in place. Connect a thermocouple couple extension cable to each thermocouple temperature sensor.

#### Exhaust Gas Temperature Sensors

The exhaust gas temperature (EGT) thermocouples are typically mounted in each of the exhaust header pipes close to the header flange (usually about 3" away). The exact location is not critical but you should try to mount all the EGTs at approximately the same location in each header for consistent measurements. The EGT thermocouples are supplied with a compression fitting similar to the general purpose thermocouples. The compression fitting consists of four parts; a bung, an adapter, a ferrule, and a compression nut. To install the EGT thermocouples, you need to drill a 9/16" clearance hole in the exhaust header and then weld the bung into the header.

NOTE: The bung is threaded with a 1/8" NPT and MUST be mounted with the inside taper facing out. Once the bung has been welded in place, thread the adapter into the bung and tighten. Place the ferrule into the adapter and loosely thread the compression nut onto the adapter. Insert the EGT thermocouple into the compression fitting and

tighten the compression nut to secure the thermocouple. Insert the EGT thermocouple into the compression fitting until the tip is approximately in the center of the header. Secure by tightening the compression nut.

#### TK-4 Thermocouple Converter Installation

The TK-4 thermocouple converter unit is required to provide signal conditioning of the thermocouple signals. All eleven thermocouples installed above are connected to a thermocouple converter. The thermocouple cables provided with the thermocouples are four feet long. When installing the thermocouple converter unit, make sure it is within reach of all the thermocouple cables. Mount the TK-4 thermocouple converter unit using the four mounting holes in the mounting flanges. The converter unit can be mounted anywhere within reach on the thermocouples including under the hood. If the unit is mounted under the hood, avoid locations very close to the exhaust headers to prevent excessive temperatures. Also try to mount the converter unit vertically with the thermocouple connectors pointing down to prevent water accumulation in the converter unit is mounted in a protected location such as the interior of the vehicle, then the unit can be mounted in any orientation. Once the TK-4 thermocouple converter unit and the thermocouples are installed, connect the thermocouples to the converter unit. The general purpose thermocouples have a male thermocouple connector attached for easy disconnection and removal. These thermocouples are provided with a four-foot thermocouple extension cable. Connect the female connector on the extension cable to the thermocouple and the male connector to the TK-4 Thermocouple Converter unit.

#### Wheel / Shaft Speed Sensors

These sensors are supplied with two rare earth magnets and a sensor pickup and can be used to measure either wheel speed or shaft speeds. The two magnets are mounted equally spaced around the rotating object (wheel or shaft) and the pickup is mounted on a stationary object. For proper operation, the magnets must pass within a maximum of 1/4 inch of the pickup. Because of this restriction, it is very important to mount the pickup on something that moves very little relative to the magnets.

For example, if the magnets are mounted on the drive shaft, they should be either mounted close to the transmission end or close to the rear end and the pickup should be mounted directly to the transmission or the rear end respectively. Similarly, if the magnets are mounted to a wheel, the pickup must be mounted to a suspension piece that moves with the wheel. The magnets can be either epoxied in place or taped in place with duct tape.

Note: As supplied by the factory, these sensors are configured to measure RPM as they are typically used to measure input shaft and output shaft RPM. If one of these sensors is used to measure vehicle speed, the sensor must be calibrated accordingly. The calibration of the speed sensor is unique to each installation. (Refer to the *Sensor Calibration* section.)

#### Wiring Harness Installation and Connection

To provide a splash-proof system and make installation as easy as possible, QwikData uses high-grade waterproof connectors and an external wiring harness instead of having terminals on the box. Push the wiring harness connector(s) onto the mating male plug(s) on the QwikData box until you hear a "click". If your package included the Advanced QwikData unit, there will be two connectors on the QwikData box. The harness with the DB9 connector is connected to the right hand plug (as viewed from the plugs on the QwikData unit). Refer to the pictures below.



To remove a connector once it is installed, insert a small flat blade screwdriver under the locking clip. Lift the clip while pulling on the connector (never pull on the wires).



To make installation as easy as possible, the wiring harness provided is completely assembled with connectors that mate to the supplied sensors. Each sensor is connected to the QwikData unit by simply mating the appropriate connectors. (Refer to the QwikData Reference Manual on the CD ROM for a description of the wiring harness and the sensor connections.)

Route the wiring harness as needed to make connections to the installed sensors. To connect the circular connectors on the wiring harness to the sensors, push the mating connectors firmly together and then turn the locking ring clockwise to lock the connectors together.

#### Bracket Drag and Import/Compact Drag Racing Package Sensor Connections

Connect the TK4 Thermocouple Converter box to the harness connector labeled "THERM CONV". The TK-4 Thermocouple Converter box is a four-channel unit, with the channels labeled A through D. The EGT Thermocouples then plug into the TK-4 Converter box. By default, the EGT connected to channel A of the TK-4 Converter box is labeled as EGT 1 in the software and so on. You can easily change the channel's names using the QwikData software to match the correct cylinder numbers for your installation.

Connect the shaft speed sensor located on the drive shaft to the connector labeled "SPEED", the connector marked "FUEL PRESS" to the fuel pressure sensor, etc.

## Advanced Drag Racing Package Sensor Connections

Connect the harness connector marked "THERM CONV 1" to the connector on the side of the TK-4 Thermocouple Converter unit #1, the harness connector marked "THERM CONV 2" to the connector on the side of the TK-4 Thermocouple Converter unit #2, the harness connector marked "THERM CONV 3" to the connector on the side of the TK-4 Thermocouple Converter unit #3. The TK-4 Thermocouple Converter box is a four channel unit, with the channels labeled A through D. The EGT Thermocouples then plug into the TK-4 Converter box. By default, the EGT connected to channel A of the #1 TK-4 Converter box is labeled as EGT 1 in the software and so on up to channel D of the #2 TK-4 Converter box which corresponds to EGT 8. You can easily change the channel's names using the QwikData software to match the correct cylinder numbers for your installation. Channels A and B of TK-4 Converter box #3 are labeled as Water Temperature and Oil Temperature but can be used to measure any temperatures you want. Connect the shaft speed sensor located on the input shaft to the connector labeled "Speed 1", the shaft speed sensor located on the output shaft to the connector labeled "Speed 2", the connector marked fuel press, to the fuel pressure sensor, etc.

#### Connection To Battery Power

Power is connected to the QwikData box using the red and black wires on the wiring harness. Connect the red wire to a switched 12V source (e.g. output of ignition switch) and the black wire to a good ground. The recommended grounding point for most installations is the ground bolt located on the back of the right side cylinder head. The black wire in the wiring harness is supplied with a terminal to fit this grounding bolt. Do not connect the red wire directly to the battery, as this will put an unnecessary current draw on your battery (approximately 250 ma) when the ignition switch is off. QwikData does not need continual battery to preserve data and configuration settings.

Note: A good system ground is very important for proper operation of the QwikData system. Whenever possible, connect the ground as described above. It is also very important to have a good ground strap between the engine and the chassis.

#### Engine RPM Connection

Two un-terminated wires are provided on the main harness for RPM input. Most electronic ignition systems provide a tach output and these wires should be connected directly to this output. The purple wire should be connected to the tach signal (+) and the black wire should be connected to a good ground or (-) signal terminal if provided by the ignition system.

WARNING !!!: THIS INPUT SHOULD NOT BE CONNECTED DIRECTLY TO THE IGNITION COIL.

Note: The RPM input is calibrated for a typical 8 cylinder application in the default setup but this may require calibration depending on the installation, (see Reference manual on the QwikData CD ROM for details).

#### Data Logging On/Off Switch

With the QwikData system, data logging can be started and stopped either automatically based on sensor values or manually with a switch (default configuration). If manual-logging control is desired, a single pole on/off toggle switch must be installed in the vehicle and connected to the two logging control wires (yellow and black) labeled "LOG ON/OFF" in the main wiring harness. One wire should be connected to each terminal on the toggle switch. Data logging will start when the toggle switch is turned on (connecting the black and yellow wires together) and stop when the switch is turned off. If automatic data logging is used, these wires are not needed.

#### SOFTWARE INSTALLATION

The PC software utilizes a standard Windows installation program. As a precaution, you should shut down any other applications that may be currently running before starting the QwikData installation. Insert the QwikData CD into your CD-ROM drive.

To run the QwikData analysis software, you must install the software on a PC with the following minimum requirements:

Processor:	.Pentium
System Speed:	.166 mHz
Memory:	.32 MB RAM
Operating System:	.Windows 95 / 98 / 2000 / XP / NT 4.0
Free Disk Space:	.16 MB

The QwikData installation program should auto-start when you insert the CD into your CD ROM drive. If the program does not auto-start, select "Run" from the Windows "File" menu and enter "D:\AUTORUN.EXE" in the dialog box (replace "D" with the drive letter of your CD-ROM drive).



Click the "Setup(Win 95/98/NT)" icon to begin the software installation.



Click the 'Next' button and follow the on screen instructions for installation.



When the "Installation Type" screen is displayed, click on the QwikData package that you are using and click on the "Next" button to proceed.

Follow the on-screen instructions to complete the software installation.

Note: The setup program must always be utilized if installing the software on a different machine. Simply copying the ".exe" program over will not work.

#### FIRST TIME POWER-UP

Connect QwikData to one of your PC's spare serial ports using the gray serial cable with the 9 pin "D" type computer connector (Note: This is not waterproof, so keep this stowed in a dry place during operation). If your computer only has a 25-pin connector, then you must purchase a 9 to 25 pin adapter (available anywhere computer products are sold). The QwikData Analysis software automatically searches all the available COM ports on your PC to find the QwikData unit. The first time you connect the QwikData unit to your PC, this search process may take some time. Once communications with the QwikData unit is established, the software remembers the COM port. The next time you start the program, it will check this COM port first and unless you connect the QwikData unit to a different COM port, communications will be established quickly.

Note: If you are using the QwikData Analysis software to analyze previously logged data that has been stored on you PC hard drive (historical data) and the QwikData unit is not connected to your PC, simply click on the QwikData logo with the left mouse button to bypass the auto-search function. The program will start-up shortly thereafter.

ି <sub>ଥି</sub> Qw	vikData
<u>, F</u> ile	<u>⊻</u> iew <u>T</u> ools <u>S</u> etup <u>A</u> bout
· .	Not Connected

If you get the flashing red message "Not Connected" then the PC program could not communicate with the QwikData unit.

Ensure that the QwikData unit is receiving 12 volts and that the QwikData unit is connected to an available COM port on your computer. Then either re-start the program or select "Re-initialize Comm" from the "Tools" menu.

📲 QwikData	L	
_ <u>F</u> ile ∖ <u>⊻</u> iew `	<u>Tools</u> <u>⊜S</u> etup <u>`</u> About	· ·
	Zero Accelerometers	cted
	Re-initialize Comm	
	CommPort	
	Advanced Options	

After communications has been established, the PC program will display the message "Uploading Setup" and a progress bar will appear.

#### Initializing the QwikData Setup

To initialize the QwikData unit to the factory default setup, select the "Load Setup" from the "File" menu.

<u>F</u> ile ⊻iew	Tools	<u>S</u> etup	<u>H</u> elp
<u>U</u> pload De	ia		
<u>E</u> xport File	to Text		
<u>L</u> oad Setup			
<u>S</u> ave Setu	, K.		
<u>Q</u> uit			

Highlight the file named "default.sup" and click the "OK" button.

.cad Setup Informnation	1			? X
File <u>name:</u> Default.sup		<u>F</u> olders: c:\qwikdata		ОК
Default.sup			<u>(*</u>	Network
				F Bead only
	<u>*</u>		<u>~</u> ]	
List files of type: Setup Files (*.sup)	•	Drí⊻es: Į ा c:	•	

Now select the "Download Setup" option from the "Setup Menu" and click "OK"

ि दि Q¥	vikDat	ta	
File	Ľ⊻ièw	<u> </u>	<u>S</u> etup <u>A</u> bout
. • ••			Digital Channels
			<u>Analog</u> Channels
· .	С. С.	·. ·	<u>G</u> raphing Sétup
н 1 н. н.		1	Logging Setup
		· · · · ·	Download Setup
		<u> </u>	<u>Ü</u> pload Setyp

If the QwikData unit has any data stored in its memory, this data will be erased and the warning message "Downloading will erase all saved data. Continue?" will be displayed.

Click on the "OK" button to proceed and the downloading progress bar will appear.

Once the download is complete, the setup information is permanently stored in the QwikData unit and you do not have to download the setup information again unless you change the setup.

Sensor Calibration

If you are using the sensors provide in the QwikData package, then the default setup file already has all the calibration information for the sensors. The only exception is if you want to use the drive shaft speed sensor to measure the vehicle speed (the default setup file calibrates this sensor in RPM). The calibration of this sensor for vehicle speed will be unique for every vehicle.

To calibrate this sensor for vehicle speed, select "Digital Channels" from the "Setup" menu to display the Digital Channel Setup Screen.

## Digital Sensor Calibration

QwikData configuration is performed in the "Setup" menu:



Note: After making any setup changes, the new setup must be downloaded to the QwikData unit using the "Download Setup" option in the "Setup" menu before the changes are effective.

#### Digital Channel Setup

This menu selection allows you to select whether or not each of the digital channels is to be enabled for viewing or logging, and to enter in descriptive and calibration information for each channel. For each channel that you intend to use, click the "Channel" Box to enable that channel. Until the channel is enabled, no additional information can be entered for that channel.

🛍 Digital Setup							
Channel:	Name:						
☑ 1	RPM						

Name: Enter a descriptive name for each channel (will appear on graph) e.g. RPM.Choosing Channels

#### Choosing Channels

While QwikData offers tremendous flexibility by allowing you to configure each channel individually, the standard QwikData packages are provided pre-configured and you will not need to modify the channel selections unless you are adding optional sensors to the standard package.

#### Analog Inputs

Analog Inputs can measure signals in the 0-10 volt range. Voltages above 10V (24 Absolute maximum) will be displayed as 10V. Channel 16, will read voltages up to 20V via a 2: I Voltage Divider. Factory settings configure your unit with Channels 9 and 10 to reading the internal accelerometers, Channel 16 is configured to read battery voltage. If you do not want to take these readings and require the extra channels, see the jumper page #XXX.

Page									
Channel:	Name:	Units:	Analog	Sensor	Calibratio	on:			Accelerometer:
<b>17</b> 0	Accelerometer 1	ö	-5.00	6.00	10.00	6.59	000	C CO	🔽 1
		(see	ang.	4.50	0.69	6.60	0.00		j
ក្រ	Accelerometer 2	3	6.00	5.00	000	De la composition	0.00	0.00	<b>7</b> 2 ·
		(A40)	0 E G	2.50	0.00	6 (.).	200	83.	]

**Digital Inputs** 

These are inputs that can measure a digital (on/off) signal. As well as strictly reading if a signal is on or off (such as monitoring a brake light switch), QwikData can measure the frequency of a signal (Tach. output or wheel speed sensor), the on or off period (fuel injector pulse), or count the number of times a signal goes from on to off (or off to on).

🛍 Digil	tal Setup									x
Channel:	Name:	Туре:	Units:	Digital S	ensor Ca	libration:				
<b>₽</b> []	RPM	Frequency Rise 💌	Hz	0.00	9000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
			100x Hz	0.00	6.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	

There are 3 types of Digital Inputs. You must correctly identify your inputs before proceeding!!!

#### Logic signal

Channels 1 and 6 are configured to measure signals that switch between a high (12 or 5 volts) and low (ground) voltage by themselves. This may be a tach. signal, a signal generated from another electronic device (1TL or CMOS level), an injector input etc.

#### WARNING!!!

Do not connect any digital input directly to an ignition coil as the electrical noise may cause improper operation of QwikData or damage the unit (Use the RPM-1 adapter to connect to the negative side of a coil).

#### Grounding Type Switch

Channels 2,3, and 5 are configured with a pull-up resistor so that a grounding type switch can be read, e.g. when using one of our wheel speed sensors the normal reading is 12 V due to the pull-up resistor, then the signal goes to ground level when the switch passes by the magnet.

#### Low to high signal

Channel Four (4), is configured with a pull-down resistor in the basic QwikData unit to allow it to read signals with either the presence or absence of 12V. e.g. when monitoring an ignition switch the signal is either a 12V signal or an open circuit

(not ground) when the switch is off. Digital Input Channels can be changed to be any of the 3 types listed above by changing internal jumper settings. See the *"QwikData Jumper Configuration"* on page 45.

Proceed with caution when changing the digital channel Jumper settings.

Type: Select Input type from pull-down menu.

🐃 Digital Setup										
Channel:	Name:	Туре:								
J <b>⊽</b> 1	RPM	Frequency Rise 🔻								
<b>₽</b> 2	Speed Sensor 1	Frequency Rise 💌								
<b>₽</b> 3	Speed Sensor 2	Duty High All Duty Low On Time Off Time								
₩ 4	Brake	Frequency Fall Counter Rise								

Pure Digital	Select when you simply want to .determine status of a two state input (e.g. Brake light on/off).
Duty High	Used mostly for computer cars, E.g. to measure the percentage of time an input (e.g. injectors) is high.
Duty Low	Used mostly for computer cars, E.g. to measure the percentage of time an input (e.g. injectors) is low.
On Time	Used mostly for computer cars, E.g. to measure the absolute time (in milliseconds) an input (e.g. injectors) is high.
Off Time	Used mostly for computer cars, E.g. to measure the absolute time (in milliseconds) an input (e.g. injectors) is low.
Frequency Rise	Used to measure the frequency of an input (e.g. Tach, signal, wheel speed sensor) by measuring the rising edge of a signal. The units for frequency are Hz x 100.
Frequency Fall	Used to measure the frequency of an input (e.g. Tach. signal, wheel speed sensor) by measuring the falling edge of a signal. The numbers generated by using this setting are usually the same as those measured by selecting "Frequency Rise", but this setting may be preferable with certain types of signals (e.g. those with lots of electrical noise). The units for frequency are Hz x 100.
Counter Rise	Used to count the number of transitions from low to high of a variable. This is an alternate setting for inputs such as "lap beacons".

This 6-element table allows you to calibrate your sensor to provide the right MPH, RPM etc. read out. Having 6 elements allows you to calibrate some non-linear sensors (e.g. GM mass air flow meter with frequency output), but for most applications (linear sensors), you will only need to utilize the left two elements. The lower numbers in gray are the raw digital inputs, the numbers in white are the corresponding display numbers you are interested in.

<b>₽</b> 2	2	Wheel Speed	Frequency Rise 💌	Hz	0.00	200.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
				100x Hz	0.00	0.897	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

#### **RPM** Example

🛍 Digil	tal Setup									
Channel:	Name:	Type:	Units:	Digital S	ensor Ca	alibration	:			
☑ 1	RPM	Frequency Rise 🔻	Hz	j0.00	9000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
			100x Hz	0.00	6.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	

Before entering any numbers, you must first find out the calibration constants for the input you will be using. Let's look at a tach input for a V8. The maximum RPM for the calibration table should be higher than you will ever see. Let's take the default example of 9000 RPM. A standard tach. signal provides 1 pulse every time a cylinder fires. At 9000 RPM, this is 600 pulses per second, or 600 Hz. The input type is set as "Frequency Rise". The first element contains the numbers (0), (0). This means that for a frequency of "0", the RPM should be "0". The second element has the numbers (6), (9000). This signifies that for an input frequency of 600 (6 times 100), the RPM should be 9000. The next number pair is (0), (0) which lets QwikData know that this is the end of the calibration data entry.

#### Shaft Speed Example

The following calibration values should be used to measure shaft speeds on a shaft with two magnets (i.e. 2 pulses per revolution). This will result in a frequency of one half the tach signal in the prior example.

<b>⊽</b> 2	Speed Sensor 1	Frequency Rise	Hz	0.00	9000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
			100x Hz	0.00	3.00 .	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
<b>I</b> 3	Speed Sensor 2	Frequency Rise 💌	Hz	0.00	9000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
			100xHz	0.00	3.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Thus, assuming the same 9000 max RPM, the input frequency is only 300 Hz. Thus the second element contains the numbers (3), (9000). The third element is (0), (0) which indicates to QwikData that this is the end of the calibration table data.

#### MPH Example

V	2	Wheel Speed	Frequency Rise 💌	Hz	0.00	200.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	, .			100x Hz	0.00	0.897	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

The input type should be set to "Frequency Rise". To measure the vehicle speed, you need to calibrate a speed sensor mounted on the output drive shaft.

To complete the calibration, you must know the rolling radius of your rear tire and the Final Drive Gear Ratio. To determine the rolling radius of your rear tire, measure the distance from the center of the wheel to the ground with the car fully loaded and on level ground. Use the following formula to determine appropriate table value to enter into the calibration table. (See CD-ROM).

Max MPH	Final Ratio		Radius
		Calib Value	

Example:

Calib. Value = No. of Magnets x Max MPH x Final Ratio x No. of Turns/Mile

360000

Turns/Mile =  $\frac{63360 \text{ (Inches/Mile)}}{\text{Rollout (2 .x Tire Radius x 3.14)}}$ 

Max MPH =	200
Tire Radius =	12.5
Final Drive Ratio =	4.10
No. of Magnets =	2
Result=	3.67

Note: Choose a Maximum speed higher than the car can achieve. This number does not have to accurately represent the actual top speed of the car. To simplify the calculations, pick an even number like 200 or 250, etc.

## Brake On/Off Example

<b>F</b> 4	Ĩ	Brake	Pure Digital	-	on/off	0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
					(none)	0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

This is an example of recording a pure digital signal and is the default setting for channel 4. The input type must be set to "Pure Digital". The calibration numbers are simply (0), (0) and (I), (I). This means that with the input not triggered (input of "0"), the output for the graphs read "0". With the input triggered (Brake lights "on" in the example), the output reading is "I". The third element is (0), (0) which indicates to QwikData that this is the end of the calibration table data.

Injector Duty Cycle Example

<b>7</b> 6	Inj. Duty Cycle	Duty Low	<b>•</b>	8	0.00	100.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
		Duty High Duty Low	•	(%)	0.00	100.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Duty cycle is the percentage of time that a signal is high or low. Duty cycle is often used to characterize an injector output. The input type is set for "Duty High" or "Duty Low". (Duty Low is simply 100-Duty High). The calibration numbers are (0), (0), and (100), (100). The third element is (0), (0) which indicates to QwikData that this is the end of the calibration table data.

Injector On Time Example



Instead of Duty Cycle, you may want to measure the absolute on or off time of the injectors in milliseconds for each firing cycle. Select "On Time" or "Off Time" for the input type. Ensure that the maximum length of time of the signal is within the pre-set limits of the system, *See "Advanced Options"*. The default setting allows you to measure pulse widths of up to 210.5 ms. This is well within the range of most injector pulses which are usually in the 1 to 30 ms range. So for this example, the calibration numbers can be (0), (0), and (30), (30).

Note: (We could use any number up to 210.5). The third element is (0), (0) which indicates to QwikData that this is the end of the calibration table data.

Lap Beacon Example



A lap beacon is an example of a digital input that is configured as a counter. Another example may be an Integrating Flowmeter where each revolution of the turbine in the flowmeter produces a pulse and each pulse corresponds to a set amount of fuel. So by counting pulses, you may determine the absolute amount of fuel that has passed. (Note: In most cases for racing applications, we are interested in the fueling rate (gpm) and thus read flowmeters as microseconds QwikData can measure frequencies of up to 6000 Hz, but the minimum rises to 202 Hz.

#### Channel Enable

For each channel that you intend to use, click the "Channel" Box to enable that channel. Until the channel is enabled, no additional information can be entered for that channel. Channels 9 and 10 are the built-in accelerometers.

🛍 Analog	Setup								X
<u>P</u> age									
Channel:	Name:	Units:	Analog	Sénsor	Calibratio	on:			Accelerometer:
₩ b	Accelerometer 1	C.	8 Q.C	1500	0.00	0.00	0.00	<u>l</u> e o	j 🔽 1
		(* 684)	0.00	4.50	0.00	0.00	0.99	é 😳	j ·
<b>j</b> 10	Accelerometer 2	\$	8.90	5.00	0.00	0.00	n Qu	0.00	2
		(Može)	0.50	4,50	0.00	0.00	2.00	0 (Q	]

These two channels are always enabled as accelerometers unless the Accelerometer Enable boxes on the right side of the form are de-selected and two jumpers are changed as shown on the *jumper table*.

#### Channel Name and Units

Enter a descriptive name for each channel (this will appear on your graphs) e.g. Oil Pressure and an abbreviation for the engineering units of the variable e.g. "psi". These are the units that will appear on your graph.

#### Channel Calibration

Analog channels have a six (6), element table that allows you to calibrate your sensor to provide the right EGT, oil pressure etc., read out. Having 6 elements allows you to calibrate some non-linear sensors (e.g. NGK wide range oxygen sensor), but for most applications (linear sensors), you will only need to utilize the left two elements. The lower numbers in gray are the raw voltage inputs, the numbers in white are the corresponding display numbers you are interested in.

#### Fuel Pressure Example

🔽 11	Fuel Pressure	psi	0.00	100.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
		(Volts)	1.00	5.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Before entering in the calibration constants for an analog input you must find out the calibration of the sensor. The pressure sensors that are sold with QwikData have a 1 to 5 volt linear output over the chosen pressure range of the sensor. The default for Channel 11 is a 0 to 100-psi sensor. The calibration is thus (1)(0) (1-volt equals 0 psi) and (5)(100) (5 volts equals 100 psi). The third element is (0), (0) which indicates to QwikData that this is the end of the calibration table data.

#### EGT Example

🕶 13	EGT 1	Į'F	32.00	1809	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
		(Volts)	0.00	10.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

The EGT converters supplied with QwikData have an output of 0-10 volts over a temperature range of 32° to 1809°. F (0-987°. C). The calibration is thus (0)(32) (0 volts equals 32°. F) and (10)(1809) (10 volts equals 1809°. F). The third element is (0), (0) which indicates to QwikData that this is the end of the calibration table data.

#### Zero Accelerometers

After installing the QwikData unit and before operation, this should be selected to automatically zero the accelerometer readings. This will take into account minor mounting misalignment (i.e. if box is not absolutely level).

۳ĝ Q	vikData				
Eile	∵ <u>V</u> iew	<u>T</u> ools	<u>∖S</u> etup	' <u>A</u> bout	<b>`</b> .
· · .		<u>Z</u> ero	Accelero	meters	
				· · · ·	

The QwikData box must be powered up and connected.

Select "Zero Accelerometers" from the "Tools" menu and the system will proceed.

#### Zero Analog Channels

The QwikData program allows you to zero selected analog channels at any time. This effectively change calibration values so that the current value being read on the channel is assigned as the zero point for the sensor and all readings will then be displayed as plus and minus values referenced to this zero point. This feature is most useful for sensors such as suspension travel sensors. In this case, the vehicle would be setup at its normal static ride height including full tanks and driver and then the suspension travel channel would be zeroed. After being zeroed, the suspension travels values would be displayed as plus and minus values relative to the static value.

Note: This screen should not be used to zero the accelerometers that are included in the QwikData unit. To zero the accelerometers, use the "Zero Accelerometers" selection from the "Tools" menu (see the Zero Accelerometers section below.

To zero analog channels select "Zero Analog Channels" from the "Tools" menu.

39 Qw	nkData	<b>a</b>			
<u> </u>	Yew	<u>T</u> oola	<u>S</u> etup	<u>II</u> elp	
		<u>Z</u> ero A	Accelerc	meters	
		Zero <u>A</u>	∖rclog C	hanrel 📐	
		P.e-ri	tial zo Co	orn	
		Comm	Port		

Note: the QwikData unit must be on and connected to the PC for this function to be active.

幡Zen	o An	alog Channels					_ 🗆 🗙
7∍ro		Charnel	Value	7ero		Channe	Value
٣	÷	Long Acce	3.1040.24	٣	<u>in</u>	Channel 21	()
٣	Įŕ	Lecausi	4.03602	٣	<u>:</u> 2	Channel 22	<u>i</u>
٣	11	Thrott e Pos	39.99694	٣	02	(Daniel Z)	()
٣	12	Steering Angle	179.9945	٣	04	Champel 24	()
٣	13	LF Suspension	7.999755	r	00	Channel 25	()
٢	14	RFSuspersion	7 999755	٣	0ß	Channel 30	ſi
Г	15	Brake Pressure	2499.923	٣	02	Coansel 22	[ii
Г	16	Battery	13.04884	٣	08	Chamel 28	Ú
Г	17	LR Suspension	7.999755	r	03	Channel 29	Ú
٣	18	RRSuspension	7.999755	٣	30	Channel 30	Ú
Г	19	Channel 19		٣	31	Channel 3)	Ú
Г	0	Channel CO	[ <u>:</u>	٣	32	Chamel 30	Ú
٢	18	RRSuspension	7.999755	٣	30	Channel 30	ù
Г	19	Ubannel 19		٣	31	Channel 31	Ú
Г	00	Channel CO	1	٣	32	Chausel 30	Ŭ

Select each channel to be zeroed by checking the check box next to the channel name. Note: Only analog channels that are currently enabled can be zeroed. When you have selected all the channels to be zeroed, click on the "*OK*" button.

#### Zero Accelerometers

After installing the QwikData unit and before operation, this should be selected to automatically zero the accelerometer readings. This will take into account minor mounting misalignment (i.e. if box is not absolutely level).

Note: The QwikData unit must be powered up and connected to your PC.

📲 Q 🕯	vikData		
` <u>F</u> ile	⊻îew	<u>T</u> ools <sup>§</sup> Setup	About
· · ·		Zero Accelero	meters

Select "Zero Accelerometers" from the "Tools" menu and the system will proceed.

#### Logging Setup

The "Logging Setup" menu option allows you to configure how and when data is logged and the logic criteria required to trigger the digital outputs.

🖏 Logging Setup		
General Sampling Rate (Hz): 100 ▼ 500 50 50 10	Samples/Average:	Log Rate: 10.00 Hz

#### Sample Rate

This is the *number of times* per second that QwikData scans the sensors. The valid numbers are from 0.1 (once every ten seconds) to 500. All digital and analog channels are scanned at this rate.

#### Samples/Average

QwikData can average incoming data over multiple samples to smooth noisy signals.

#### Log Rate

This is the result of dividing the sample rate by the samples/average. The result is the number of times per second that QwikData actually puts data into memory. It is usually best to sample at a high rate (e.g. 500 samples/sec), then select the samples/average to give you the actual data storage rate you need. The higher the logging rate is, the better the graphing resolution will be. But memory is filled more quickly (and the longer the upload times). For road racing, unless you are trying to analyze suspension travel a log rate of 20 times per second is adequate. 50 or even IOO times per second is probably better for drag racing due to the short runs. The total logging time or run time depends on the number of channels being logged and the Log Rate.

The Run Time can be calculated from the following formula:

Run Time =

8333 # Channels x Log Rate

Use the run time calculator (On CD-ROM) to estimate your total logging time.

### Speed Channel

The historical graphs can display data vs. time, or data vs. distance traveled. If this feature is desired, a vehicle speed sensor must be installed and you must tell the system which speed sensor will be used for the distance calculations. A list of all enabled digital inputs is displayed for selection.

Speed Units

I	🛍 Logging Setup					
	; General					Ŷ
	Sancling Rale (Hz):	Samples/Average:	Log Rate: 1000 Hz	Speed Charnel:	Speed Urits:	
		, 1	,	Lap Trigger Channel:	kpl- In∕s	
I				فسبد ب- ر	km/s	J

The units that the speed sensor is calibrated in must be entered here so that the distances on the graphs can be configured correctly. Select a value from the pre-configured list.

#### Lap Trigger Channel

··· bieneral··· · ·····				
Sampling Fate (Hz):	Samples/Average:	Log Rate: 10.90 Hz	Speed Chanrel: Speed Scnsor 1 🚬	Speed Units:
			Lap Trigger Channel	

If a lap beacon or driver controlled pushbutton is used to break a session into laps, then this input box is used to identify the digital channel number to QwikData. A list of all enabled digital inputs is displayed for selection.

#### Starting Trigger

One of the handiest features of QwikData is the ability to start logging when a certain action occurs, or a sensor reaches a pre-defined value (e.g. start logging when RPM > 5000). If automatic start/stop triggers are not used, data logging can be started manually from the Realtime display screen.

- Starting Trigger	Γ·····			
Trigger Type:	🗘 Digital Signal	RPM 💽	High	> _ 5000.00
	ぐ Analog Signal	(sore) <b>*</b>		

First select whether the trigger is digital or analog by clicking on the appropriate button.

#### Digital Starting Triggers

These allow you to start logging based upon a digital sensor value (e.g. Wheel Speed > 30)

🚆 Starting Tri	igger		
Trigger T	ype 🛛 🕫 Digital Signal	Wheel Speed 💌 🔤	× > × 30.00
	🎵 Analog Sìgnal	(none) RPM	
		WheelSpeed	
: · Stopping T		Speed Sensor 2	
Trigger T	ype 🌾 Digital Signal	Lap Trgger (none)	
	ัก Analog Signal	100001	

The first box displays a list of all enabled digital channels. Select the channel desired or "none". The third box allows you to select whether the trigger occurs on a rise or fall in the value «».

- Starti	ng Trigge	r					-
Ţrig	ger Type:	Digital Signal	Speed Sensor 1 🚬	High	···	30.00	
		🗘 Analog Signal	(1892) (1892)			<	
							j

The final box allows you to enter the value (e.g. 30). The second box is only used for pure digital signals when you must select whether the trigger condition is on a high or low value. (The third and fourth boxes do not have any relevance for pure digital signals).

#### Analog Starting Triggers

Analog Starting Triggers allow you to start logging based upon an analog sensor value, e.g. EGT > 600.

en Starling Frigger n i				• •• • •	
Trigger Type	C Digital Signa	Speec Server 1	High	.7	
	🏈 Analog Signal	EGT 1 💽			> 🗲 6CO.C
		(none) 🔺			
· ··· · · ···· · ···· · ···		"Accelerometer 1 🦳			
- Ptopping Triacer		-Accelerometer 2			····· · · ··· · · ··· · · · · · · · ·
		Fuel Piessure			
Trigger Type	🏈 Digital Signa		Rigi.	×.	K 🚬 000
	🧭 Analog Signal	EGT 2			
		Thiottie Posit			-

The first box displays a list of all enabled analog channels. Select the channel desired or "none". The third box allows you to select whether the trigger occurs on a rise or fall in the value «». The final box allows you to enter the value (e.g. 600).

## Stopping Trigger

Once QwikData starts logging, it must either wait for the power to be shut off, the "Stop Logging" command to be issued via the Real Time screen, or the "Stop" logging criteria to be met. The "Stop trigger" operation is similar to that of the "Start Trigger".

St	opping Trigger				
-	Frigger Type:	🕫 Digital Signal	RPM _	Rede	∠ < ₹ 200.0
:		🗘 Analog Signal	(none) RBM		<b>*</b> 0.00
			Speed Sensor 1		
			Speed Sensor 2		
μ Di	igital Outputs ·····		Brake		
1	- (16.22)	<u> </u>	Lap Trigger	ir	
:	- [i.e.wi	<u> </u>	0.00 Nov 7	ir.c.r.el	

First select whether the trigger is digital or analog by clicking on the appropriate button.

#### Digital Stopping Triggers

This allows you to stop logging based upon a digital sensor value, e.g. RPM < 200. The first box displays a list of all enabled digital channels. Select the channel desired or "none". The third box allows you to select whether the trigger occurs on a rise or fall in the value «».

r Stopping Trigger							• •••••
Trigger Type:	🕫 Digital Signal	RPM	<b>•</b>	High	·*	< - 200.0	<u> </u>
	C Analog Signal	inuna)	*			<b>5</b>	<u></u>

The final box allows you to enter the value (e.g. 200). The second box is only used for pure digital signals when you must select whether the trigger condition is on a high or low value. (The third and fourth boxes do not have any relevance for pure digital signals).

#### Analog Stopping Triggers

This allows you to stop logging based upon an analog sensor value, e.g. Oil Pressure less than 10.

	<ul> <li>Stopping Triogen + + + + + + + + +</li> </ul>				
	Tiggar Typa, 🦿 Digita Bi	ignel 😳 🐇		* <u>*</u> ?:::	— :
	@ Anang	ien-l Uil-ressure	<u> </u>	(; <u>•</u> ]10.00	·
		Constant Con	<b>-</b>		 
		Fuel Playure Fuel Playure Fuel Playure Fuel Playure Fuel Playure Fuel Playure	E Fast		_ :
	n jaar 19	EGT 2 Throtile Positi	🚽 🔤		
The first box displays a li	st of all enabled ana	alog channels. S	elect the desire	ed or "none".	:
Stopping Trigger	······································				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Trigger Type:	🗂 Digital Signal	138M	<u> </u>		200.0
	🏟 Analog Signal	Oil Pressure	<b>-</b>		< ▼ 10.00
l					>

The third box allows you to select wether the trigger occurs on a rise or fall in the value. The final box allows you to enter (e.g.10)

#### Digital Outputs

QwikData has two configurable outputs, which can drive a Bosch type automotive relay or a small light (0.5 amps maximum). Configuration of the digital outputs is accessed from the *"Logging Setup"* screen. First select whether or not the digital output will be utilized by checking the appropriate box.

The logic selection process is similar to the start/stop triggers.



Select a sensor for the first logic condition from the list of available channels, whether you want to trigger on a < or > condition, and the value. E.g. Oil Pressure < 20.

<sub>i</sub> r Digital	Outputs		· · ·	······	· · · ·	·····	······	•
5	Oil Pressure	•	r 🚽 ارد 🛃	None 💌	(none)	-	< 🚬 🛯 🗤	-
Ę	Speed Sensor 1 Speed Sensor 2 Brake		K 💌 000	None *	(rante)	<u> </u>	<u>&gt;</u> () ())	••••••
<u></u> .	Accelerometer 1 Accelerometer 2		· · ·	:			· .	
	Fuel Pressure Oil Fressure	-	· .		····.			

If a second logic condition is desired, enter the appropriate values, then select "And" or "Or" from the middle selection list e.g. Oil Pressure < 20 or Fuel Pressure < 3.

	Fuel Frequera
	HEM
「新聞」)[invest 送信 C 200 D 20 Prove 20 A	Speed Sensor I 🐘 🐴 🖓 🛛 😳 👘
Na Alexandra III III Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra Alexandra	Speed Servio 2 👘 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓
<u> po patri az la lantan a sel priver da za selemente da sel bio da se</u> l bio da se s	Broko Broko
	Lap Lugger 👘 👘 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 👘
te extensione extensione extension extens	Accelerometer 1 1 2 Accelerometer 1
	Accelerometer 2
	Fuel Pressure 🧱 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓

#### Graphing Setup

Graphing Setup allows you to choose what variables are displayed on the graph (up to 9 can be graphed at once), what colors they are displayed in, and the scale at which you want to display the data.

Ľ	🐃 Graphing Setup									
ŀ	Page									
	Chan: 1	Name: RPM	Color:	Min Scale: 0.00	Max Scale: 9000	Graph: I⊽	Auto Scale:			

Select if you want the channel displayed or not by clicking on the "Graph" box .

#### Autoscale

Select if you want the system to automatically detect the minimum and maximum scale data values and set the scales accordingly. This provides the maximum data resolution, but will result in uneven minimum and maximum scale values.

#### Min Scale/Max Scale

As an alternative to autoscaling, you can select the minimum/maximum values that you want to display on the screen. For instance, while the tach signal is calibrated from 0 to 9000 RPM, you may want to concentrate on the 3000 to 6000 range. In this case, enter 3000 as the Min. Scale value and 6000 as the Max. Scale value.

#### Channel Colors

To change the graph color of a channel, double click on the corresponding color box to bring up the color selection window.



Choose one of the pre-defined colors from the Basic Colors palette, or create a custom color from the palette. Click on "OK" to exit the window and select the chosen color.

Color	
<u>Custom colors:</u>	Hu <u>c</u> : 160 <u>R</u> cd: 0 <u>G</u> at: 240 <u>C</u> reen: 0 CaloulSglid <u>L</u> um: 60 Dl <u>u</u> e: 128
OK Cancel	Add to Custom Colors

#### Advanced Options

If *Advanced Options* is selected from the "Tools" menu, two more options appear for each channel; "Average" and "Lookup". Normally you would not need to change any of these settings.

👫 OwikDat	a			
<u>File V</u> iew	: <u>T</u> ools <u>S</u> etup ∆bout			
	Zero Accelerometers		Ave age	Look Up
	Reinitalize Comm CommPort		9 9 9	P P P
·	* Arlvanriari Optinos		P	ρ
			<u>k.</u>	ρ
display mode. If "Avera analog value. Dependin	ige" is not selected, each ig on the log rate and wha	value displayed in the Realtime Graph is the last "Raw" t the actual signal looks like, averaged and raw data may	k.	ч
look quite different.			P <sup>2</sup>	β
			P <sup>2</sup>	P
			μ÷.	P
			P <sup>2</sup>	P
"Lookup" determines w	hether or not the real time	e values displayed utilize the data calibration tables or are	P <sup>2</sup>	P
passed as raw values (C	)-10 Volts) to the realtime	display.	P <sup>2</sup>	P
1	,		κ.	ρ –
			P	μ –

#### Chart Setup

The general appearance of the data graphs can be customized by the user. The Chart Setup feature allows you to select the background color of the chart, the color of the grid and axes lines, and the colors of the cursors. Any changes made are saved and become permanent until new changes are made. The selected colors are used for both the Realtime Graph Display and the Historical Graph Display. There are several way to access the Chart Setup screen; by selecting "Chart Setup" from the "Tools" menu on the main screen, by clicking on the "Setup" menu item on the Realtime Graph screen or by selecting "Chart Setup" from the "Setup" menu on the Historical Graph screen.



To change a chart color, click on the corresponding color box. The box on the left of the Chart Setup screen shows a sample graph setup with the currently selected colors. The color selection screen will then be displayed.



Select the desired color and click on the "OK" button to return to the "Chart Setup" screen.

Color	? ×
Basic colors:	
<u>C</u> ustom colors:	
	Hu <u>e</u> : 16C <u>R</u> ed: 255
	<u>3</u> at: 0 <u>G</u> reen: 255
Dense Custom Colors >>	Color S <u>o</u> lid Lum: 240 Bl <u>u</u> e: 255
OK Cancel	<u>∧</u> dd to Custom Colors

## Save Setup

After you have entered all the Setup data you should save it to a file using the "Save Setup" item in the "File" menu of the main tool bar.



After selecting this item, the standard Windows file load/save dialog box up.

ile <u>come</u>		Loiders:	0< <
Now.oup		e') ewikdore	اسخ. سیری
Ain tean tea	.x.	(a	Conce
Enercicus Sciencus			Network
			JT Read only
	Ň		
inverfieloe <u>t</u> ype:		Dri <u>v</u> es:	
Sup Filos (*toup)	-	<b>E</b> u <u>·</u>	

Choose the file location, type in a descriptive name with the file extension of *.sup*, and then click on the "OK" button.

#### Load Setup

This option allows you to retrieve a previously saved Setup from disk. You may want to have separate Setups for different applications (i.e. one Setup for the vehicle, another when dynamometer testing the engine), or when using QwikData on different vehicles. Select "Load Setup" from the "File" menu.

<u>F</u> ile	⊻iew	Tools	<u>s</u>	etup	<u>H</u> elp
Upl	oad Da	ta.			
<u>E</u> ×p	ort File	to Text			
Loa	ad Setup				
<u>S</u> a\	/e Setup	, М			
<u>Q</u> ui	t				

After selecting this item, the standard Windows file load dialog box will be displayed.

Load Setup Informnation		? ×
File <u>n</u> ame: Advanced.sup Advanced.sup Brocketsup Default.sup	_oldorc: a\qwikdctb (合 c:\) 會 GWIKDATA	UK Carneel Network.
		🏽 Beadony
List files of gipe. Setup Files (* sup) 🚬	Drives.	

Locate the desired setup file and double click on the filename to load the selected setup file.

#### Download Setup

After entering and saving the Setup data, select this option from the "Setup" menu to download your Setup data to the QwikData box. The box must be powered up and connected before proceeding.



Downloading will erase any previously saved data in the box. Selecting "Download Setup" is a convenient way to clear the memory in preparation for logging new data.

## Upload Setup

An upload is automatically performed whenever the PC establishes communications with the QwikData box.

종 Qw	vikData	ì		
.El∋	⊻i∋w	,⊒póls,	<u>⊇etupi )A</u> peut∘	··
·* *	·. ·		_ Digit⊨l Ca⊨nnels	
	. · ·	*	Analog Charne s	
•			Grophing Setup	. '
			Logging Selup	
	• .	: · ·	D <u>ö</u> wnloed Setup	_
			<u>Li</u> picad Setup	

You can manually instruct the system to upload the contents of the box by choosing this selection from the "Setup" menu.

#### Using Realtime Graphing to Assist in System Checkout

After wiring and configuring your system, you will want to check that each channel is correctly installed.

#### Normal Analog Sensors

Analog sensors are the simplest case and in most cases can be checked out without even starting the vehicle. Use a torch or heat gun to heat up the area around each EGT and watch that the response is as expected on the Realtime graphs. Oil pressure sensors can be checked out by priming or cranking the engine.

#### **Position Sensors**

These can be can be checked by physically moving the elements and watching the Realtime graphs. If you want to calibrate the sensors (e.g. calibrate throttle position to read between 0 and 100 percent) -go back to the "Analog Channel Menu" and select and set each channel so that the output reading is equal to the input. Example - for a 0 to 5 volt sensor, set the output to read 0 to 5. Download the new setup and go back to the Realtime Graph Display. Move the position sensor between the min and max positions and record the two values, (which is now a voltage) displayed. Go back to the "Analog Channel Setup" screen and now instead of entering (0), (0) and (5), (100) as the calibration values, enter new minimum voltage, (0) and new maximum voltage, (IOO) as the number pairs. Remember to save your new setup to your hard drive and download it to the QwikData unit.

#### **RPM** Inputs

Tach input signals need to be checked with the engine running. Start the engine and verify that the Realtime Graph displays the correct RPM.

#### Pure Digital Inputs

Switch the circuit being monitored on and off (e.g. depress brake pedal for brake on/off input) while watching the Realtime graph. Check that the graph changes state of Wheel & Shaft Speed Sensors. Since the minimum frequency that can be read with the default timer resolution is 6 Hz, speed sensor inputs are probably most easily checked out by setting the Digital Channel "Type" as "Pure Digital" temporarily, then download the setup to the QwikData unit. Go back to the Realtime Graph Display and monitor the display while slowly rotating the shaft. You should be able to watch the output change when the magnet passes the sensor. After you have verified the sensor, change the channel "Type" back to the proper type and download the setup to the QwikData unit again.

#### Viewing Realtime Data

Selecting this item from the "View" menu will bring up the Realtime trend graph and data will start displaying immediately. Data is updated on the display at approximately 4 times per second.





The channels displayed and the graph scaling are configured in the "Graphing Setup". Below the graphs, text boxes display the current values of each channel.

#### Reset Memory

As an option to erasing memory via the "Download Setup" command, this may be done by clicking on the "Reset Memory" button. The Realtime display will freeze and the "Resetting Memory" indicator will be highlighted in red while memory is erased.

#### Manual Stop / Start

As well as configuring the system to automatically start and stop data logging via the Logging Setup Screen, you may start Logging Manually by clicking on the "Start Logging" button on the bottom right of the Real Time Data Screen. The "Data Logging" indicator will be highlighted in red and the button label will change to read "Stop Data Logging". Click on this button again to stop data logging. Once data logging is started or stopped manually, the automatic triggers will not be functional until the next time power to the QwikData box is turned off and on, or a "Download Setup" is performed.

#### Choosing Channels for Display

If you wish to look at different channels than initially selected:

- →Close the realtime graph display and enable the desired channels from the Digital Setup Q and Analog Setup Screens.
- $\rightarrow$ Use the Graph Setup Screen to select graph colors, labels and scales.

You must *Download* the setup information to the QwikData unit again before the changes take effect.

#### Setting the Window Width

If you want to view more or less data at a time, (from 10 -120 Seconds) select the "Window" menu at the top of the graph and select a new total window time size.



#### Uploading Data

After historical data is logged, it must be uploaded from the QwikData box to the PC before it can be viewed. Make sure the QwikData box is powered up and connected to your PC. Select "Upload Data" from "File" menu.



The system will first upload the setup information. It will then determine how many data sessions there are (Every time the start/stop criteria are met, a new data session is created. Up to 64 sessions can be stored in the box). A standard Windows File Save Dialog box will then open. Choose where the data will be stored and a file name. If there are multiple sessions, the system will automatically append a unique 2-digit number to the file name.

Save Data Fi	le l				1 ×
Saven	NS Samp o Dete	<u> </u>	$\sim$	<b>N</b>	
I I-I Collect					
<]0509∟cu.					
je Fom1 de Le fom2 del					
File gemet	a 1		-	<u> </u>	
Хоне свтура	lutit -res (titrl)	2	•	Ċa	ccl
	10 Open his remotionly.				

Once Data is uploaded, you can clear the memory by selecting "Download Setup" from the "Setup" menu or by clicking on the "Erase Memor" button on the realtime graph display. If the memory is not cleared, new data will simply be appended to the old. The next time you "Upload" you may then have some duplicated data.

#### Viewing Historical Data

Historical data can be viewed at your leisure without having the QwikData box connected. To view data that has already been logged, double click on *"Historical Data"* in the *"View"* menu in the main toolbar.



A standard Windows dialogue box will open. Select the file to be viewed and double click on it. The system will load all the data at once and compress the entire run on one screen.



The x-axis is normally the time scale (or could be distance as discussed below) and will display time in seconds, minutes, or hours depending on the amount of data recorded. The y-axis contains up to 9 different scales for each of the 9 channels that can be displayed on a graph. The colors of the axes correspond to the text boxes below the graph.



The text boxes below the graph show the value of each channel being displayed at each current cursor position. Move the mouse across the screen and these values will change.

#### Measuring the Length of Time Between Events



To measure the length of time of an event, move the mouse to the start of the event in question and click with the left mouse button. The cursor will change red and freeze in that position. Move the mouse again and the black cursor will re-appear. Move the black cursor to the end of the event in question and click the left mouse button again. The time between the cursors will be displayed in the lower left of the screen (Cursor Span).

Changing the channels Displayed

-}tCrup	iliinig Setluşi						
Bacc							
Char. T	Nano. PPM	Coor	MiniScale Thr	Vex Stell.	0арт. 12	Auto Boalo:	
7	Santa Porso 1		000		Г	F	
3	Speec Eensur 2		:.):	3000	ſ.	£7	
4	II S-A		1	· ·	9	Ē	
5	Lao Triggor		:.):	32727	I.,	r	
×	· roox b		· ·	· ·	Г	-	
		_	,				
9	Accele pineter 1		-:.3:		~		
Û	A state mater 2		- 1	· ·	되	-	
.1	Lup Mosculo	,	:.):	1000	ø	<b>:</b> ""	
÷	Gi Dra-Xara		- 17	1.0.2	ΕŸ.	£7	
· 9	L'al 1	<i>.</i> ,		···-	г	Г	
4	FGTC			757	I.,	r	CK
16	тев с носта			1.0.	R	F	Canad
6	SeernjAnje		- TT	110.1	Ψ.	e	

Choose "Graphing Setup" from the "Setup" menu at the top of the historical data window. The same "Graphing Setup" screen as described previously will appear. You can select the channels you want displayed (up to 9 at one time), the graph colors, and the scaling for each variable. Changes take effect immediately as soon as you select "OK" and exit the screen.

Viewing Data by Time or Distance

If a wheel speed sensor was installed and the "Speed Channel" and "Units" were entered in the "Logging Setup" screen then you may view the graph as a function of distance instead of time (default). Sometimes it may be more convenient to compare, events at a certain spot on a track (e.g. 1000 feet down the track) as opposed to a fixed time as time may vary with fast or slow laps (runs). Select either the "Time" or "Distance" options from the "Display" menu at the top of the historic data window.





If a lap beacon or a driver-controlled pushbutton was utilized to break data into laps, and this feature was enabled in the "Logging Setup" screen, then you may view data from the entire run or individually by laps. In the "Display" menu, select "View by Lap". (If there is only one lap to display or the data is not broken up into laps, the "View By Lap" option will be disabled). When "View By Lap" is selected the "Primary" and "Secondary" menus will be enabled allowing you to select both a primary and a secondary lap to view. To view a particular lap, click on the "Primary" menu to display a list of all available laps. Then click on the lap that you would like to view from the list.

₽ŕŸΗ	isto	rical Gr	aphical I	Display	050	)9a
Gro	ph	S∋tup	Display	Primory	Se	con
-				vlon1		<u> </u>
-				Lap 2		
				. lan 3		
	- '			lan 4		
	F			Lop 5		ţ
	1					

To overlay a secondary lap, select the desired lap from the "Secondary" menu. The secondary lap will be represented by dotted lines on the graph.

The lap times of both the primary and secondary laps will be displayed at the bottom of the screen. You can switch between which values are displayed at the bottom of the screen (primary or secondary lap) by clicking the right mouse button. The currently active lap will be shown in red. To remove the secondary lap from the graph select "None" from the "Secondary" menu. To return to viewing data in a non-lap dependent mode, select "View AU Data" from the "Display Menu".

₩¢.	Hist	orio	cal G	ap	ic	al I	Displ	ay	0509a.dat	
Ē	որհ	2	<u>letup</u>	<u> </u>	=pl/	Ŋ.	<u>Prin</u>	'nγ	S <u>e</u> condary	Seco
1									- (rore)	$\vdash$
									- Lapi	
									Lap 2 ⊾	
	┢			'	ľ	'	'		Lap 3 🔧	
İ	F								Lap /	

#### Viewing Data as Lap Dependent or Cumulative

When you are viewing lap data, you have the choice of viewing it as "Lap Dependent" or "Cumulative". If you view it as lap dependent, the time at the start of the lap will become "0".

<u>Diabley</u>
Mery All Date
Mere Hy rap 14
<ul> <li>Lep Dependent</li> </ul>
Ситціа: те
м нь
11 dan si

If you view it as "Cumulative", the time will be the actual time into the race.

Note: Data will always view as "Lap Dependent" if you are comparing primary and secondary laps.

#### Zoom In / Zoom Out

3, 1938 IPM

There are two basic ways to zoom in or magnify the Historical Graph display. Using the Up arrow key on the keyboard, or clicking on the up facing arrow on the bottom right of the screen will magnify the graph by two about the center of the screen.



You can also select a portion of the graph to zoom by setting the two cursors around the portion of interest. Next either select "Zoom" from the "Graph" menu or click the right mouse button and select "Zoom" from the popup menu.



To zoom out, press the Down arrow key on the keyboard or click on the down facing arrow at the bottom of the screen.



#### Scroll or Pan the Graph

If there is more data than is currently being displayed on the graph, you can scroll the graph left or right using the left and right arrow keys, or by clicking on the left and right facing arrows at the bottom of the screen.

#### Overlaying a Secondary File

You may also retrieve a secondary data file from disk to be overlaid on the primary file. To load a secondary file select the 'Open Secondary File' option from the 'Graph' menu. And select the data file to be opened from the dialog box.

Note: You cannot display data by "Distance" when Viewing by Lap.

Provide the storage of the storage				1
Open Data File File <u>n</u> ame: *.dat 0411-206.dat 0502B.DAT 0509A.DAT 0523C02.DAT 0524B02.DAT	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Eolders: c:\qwikdata i	×	OK Cancel Network
061 4a04.dat 07059803.DAT 61 48d03.dat List files of <u>t</u> ype: Data Files (*.dat)	··· ]	Drives:		

The "Secondary File" menu will now be active. Click on this menu to see a list of the available laps from the secondary file and click on the lap you wish to overlay.



Note: This secondary file must have exactly the same Digital and Analog Channel Configuration as the primary file.

The selected lap from the secondary file will now be overlaid on the Historical Graph and represented by dotted lines. To remove the secondary file lap from the graph select "None" from the "Secondary File" menu. If the selected secondary file is not broken up into lap then the "Secondary File" menu will only contain "(None)" and "Secondary Data" as shown below.



Select "Secondary Data" to overlay the secondary file or "(None)" to view only the primary file data.

#### Aligning Primary and Secondary File Graphs

Two data files such as two drag runs will rarely start at the same time relative to the start of the run. As a result, when comparing these files by overlaying them on the historical graph, the two files will not "line-up" on the graph. This makes it difficult to accurately compare the two files. To solve this problem, the program allows you to shift one file relative to another so that the data from the two files can be aligned.

Note: This feature is not active if the data files contain multiple laps. Since lap data requires accurate start and stop times, all the lap data will automatically align properly.

To align two files, view both files on the Historical Graph by over-laying the Secondary File on the Primary File. Using the first cursor, select a point from the Primary File (solid graph lines) that you want to use as the reference point.



This point can be any point on the primary graphs such when the vehicle speed first begins to rise or the maximum acceleration point at launch (used in the example shown).

Next select the corresponding point from the Secondary File (dotted graph lines). Hint: When setting the two reference points, zoom in on the Historical Graph so you can accurately pick the desired points. If you don't get the reference quite right or you decide to change you reference points, you can always select new points and re-align the files.

To align the two files based on the selected reference points, click the right mouse button to display the pop-up menu. Select "Align Data Files" from the pop-up menu.





Alternately, you can select "Align Data Files" from the "Graph" menu.

<u>Groph</u> <u>S</u> etup <u>D</u> ispjαy ∰∞α
Coen Datatile
Close Datal le
Cróp Dototile
Coen Recondary Datafile
Aliens, free Lides
Andulacianie
Aigh Leanne Faire Dele Frasilian Ain.
Fint Window
Andprisic Fine Revier Detechte stiliger Mins. Frint Winclow Print Bolup

This will shift the data so that the two reference points align with each other on the graph and all the data from each file will be displayed relative to the reference points and the two files can be easily compared.



To return the two files to their original alignment relative to each other, select "Reset Data File Alignment" from the "Graph" menu.



#### Cropping Data Files

Sometimes you may log more data then you really wanted. In these cases you can use the crop function to eliminate the unwanted data. To crop a data file, open the file for viewing in the Historical Graph display. Set the two cursors around the part of the data file that you want to keep and then select "Crop Datafile" from the "Graph" menu.

辭 Historical Graphical Display
<u>Graph S</u> eluc <u>D</u> isplay <u>Bagany</u>
Open Detoïle
Cluse Datafile
Crop D≘taïla
Jpon Secondary Dat≣ĭic
⊇rin: Window
Print Setu :
Hist_qram •

After setting the two cursors as desired, you can also click the right mouse button and select "Crop Data" from the pop up menu.

Historical	Graph	
<u> </u>		- · · · ·
		Select
		And
m la mora i m	a contract of the state of the	
3	CusDee	ren l
	Thodalawa	<u> </u>
1 2 11 7	(): )	
Save Data F	ile	
Save jr	🕾 Sample Data	• 🗉 🖆 🖬
<b>%]05</b> 020.ept		
<u>න</u> 05020.cot		
Million 1 det		
Pom2.dat		

electing the Crop function will display the "Save Data File" screen.

Save Data Fi	le	?!×
Save jr	🕾 Sample Data	
©05020.cot ©05020.cot ©Ubl 9-col ©For 1.dot ©Por 2.dat		
Fədanə Sevəesiyaə	[ootd] [Data Hilas (".cal) ("" Open subjeactor ly	Concel

Enter a file name to use to save the cropped data file and click the "Save" button to write the cropped file to your disk. The "Crop" function does not alter the original data file but creates a new file containing only the data of interest. Note: The "Crop" function is not active if the data file contains multiple laps.

#### Obtaining a Histogram

QwikData allows you to obtain the frequency distribution for any channel over any time period. One useful example may be to obtain the RPM distribution over one lap, or one run, to help in camshaft selection. Select the desired period using the two cursors, then select "Histogram" from the "Graph" menu of the Historical Data screen. A list of all available channels will be displayed. If the two cursor are not set, the histogram is calculated based on the entire data file.



Click on your choice and a histogram will be produced. If you select the "Display" menu on the histogram screen, you have the option of sending a copy of the histogram to your Windows system printer.

#### Printing a Graph

Select "Print Window" from the "Graph" menu at the top of the historical data window. The entire graph and everything that is currently displayed will be sent to your current Windows system printer.



#### Export Data File to Text File

If you would like to do further analysis of your logged data using a different software package, or simply want to view the raw data, then this option will export the data to a tab delimited text file.



Once this option is selected, a Windows "Open File" dialogue box will open. Select the file you want to export, then double click on it or select "OK". A "Save File" dialogue box will then open. Enter a new file name and extension (the default extension is .txt). The data is formatted so that it can be viewed or printed from any text editor or word processor. The logging setup information is displayed first followed by the raw data. The exported file can be directly imported into a spreadsheet program such as Microsoft Excel as a "tab delimited" text file.

$\mathbf{X}_{i}$ M	urnen II Fara	d - IISH26 as							
1911 - 1913 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 - 1914 -	Elle <u>E</u> dit ⊻ev	- Unseit H <u>o</u> rr	nat Loo	ls <u>L</u> ata <u>W</u> ind:	w ±∍⊫				
		[A.])	Prompt :						
ΞC	∉ <b>⊒</b> ;∋l	ልም ደቅ	189	<b></b>	<b>€</b> € 2	t= 2+ 2	観●屛江	LU% = <%;	
: Ara	al	- 10 - 1	0 <i>I</i> U		<b>b</b> • %	, % -	・ 使 使 . 二 .	3 · A ·	
l		-	= .		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		· ·····	
·	<u>А</u>	B	فب :	С	: D	)	E E	: =	G.
1	Deta Filena	shiel CNGM	V KOA	A\0502B.D	Al		• –		
	Dete Uploa	aded: Setur	day, Ma	ay 2 1993 11	07 PM				
: 3									
	: :Sande Ra	ile. 500							
5	Samples/A	verage - 25							
: 6	Log Kale	20							
7	Starting Tri	igger Ergi	ne Spe	eo < 5000					
8	Stadding T	igger Eng	jin: Spa	$\operatorname{cod} > 200$					
i 9									
. 10	, Tirst Digita	al Outputh (C	) utput r	ctiensciec)					
11	First Diigita	al Output: (C	iutpilit -	:::::::)					
12									
43	Number of	Lape: 1	13:71	iggerChann	el (lvene)	;			
14	1								
15	Chenne		3	8		10	1.1	12	- 3
- 16	:								
10	Nare	Drive Spee	io Ace	elerometar i	Accelent V	meter 2	2Hue Tress	Officess	FC (
: 18			Ara	log	/\na cg		Analog	Analog	A13.1 <u>3</u>
19	UNE Statestart	KI 194	ς g	a . 37676	ÿ	745007	per la culozori	pe a contract	degF
: 20	Minimiim			-2 21515		45307	5 913794	2 3/405	144 8333
121	vaumum		-	1.960629	-	.1400.5	15,10764	12.2771	1201. 07
- 44	, meiseci		~	2 5100000			40 74750	75 87475	580
	- 05				-0	/	10/11/55	75.07175	500
: 24	0.05 A -		ž	-0.00-0092 -0.87800-5	-0	745207	9.501527	75 00044	502,0000
1.02			-	1 7625252	 D	1175242	44,63355	73 24374	567 6666
1.0			-			1			······································
	i i i γuouzeγ i i i i								:'
26	1.15		-	1.7645353	0.	1177643	11.03370	73.21374	207.5555
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								

#### Restore Default Setup

The default setup corresponds to the settings that your QwikData unit was originally shipped with from the factory and correspond to the standard QwikData Package that you purchased.

₩ł Q¥	vikData	1				
Eile	⊻iew	<u>T</u> hals	<u>S</u> etup	<u>A</u> bo .t		
		<u>∠</u> ero,	Acce eic	meters		
He-inftalize Com **						
CommPort						
Advanced Options						
Plostare Dictauit Setup						
		Upda	lə Firmw	шы		

To restore the factory default setup, select "Restore Default Setup" from the "Tools" menu on the main QwikData screen.

Normally you will not ever have to "Restore Defaults".

#### Update Firmware

The internal QwikData program code is stored in Flash EPROM and can be updated via the QwikData PC software. This allows you to upgrade QwikData firmware without having to open the box and change EPROMs. Firmware files have an .S19 extension. Program Updates will be posted on Edelbrock website for downloading as they become available. Before updating your firmware, be sure to upload your current setup from the QwikData unit and then save it to your hard drive using the "Save Setup" function.

¢å Ωγ	vikDato	ı			
Eil≡	⊻iew	<u>T</u> ools	<u>3</u> etup	Acout	
		<u>∠</u> ero,	Accelero	m≘ters	
Ro-initializa Camm					
CommPo1					
✓ Advaric∈d Options					
•		Restr	nie Def <b>a</b> i	ult Retup	
		-لرما ا	rte E untro	are	

Once you have downloaded a firmware file from the Web, exit all other Windows programs that are running. Select "Update Firmware" from the "Tools" Menu.

A standard Windows Open File Dialogue box will appear. Select the filename that you downloaded from the web with the .S19 extension. A warning message will be displayed to remind you to shut down all other programs.



Select "OK". The system will automatically download the new program and then re-start the QwikData box. Once the firmware update is complete, load the setup file that you previously saved to your hard drive and then download it to your QwikData unit to restore your setup.

WARNING: If you do not download a valid setup file to the QwikData unit after updating the firmware, the unit may not function correctly.

#### Connector Pin Out : Bracket / Import and Compact Drag Racing Systems

Connector J1	Pin	Function	Connector	Pin
Тх	1	Serial Data To PC	J 4	2
Rx	2	Serial Data From PC	J 4	3
Return	3	Serial Data Return	J 4	5
Battery	4	+12V System Power	Battery	
Ground	5	System Ground	Note 1	
+5 V Out	6	Sensor Power, +5V	Note 2	
Channel 9	7	Accelerometer (Long)		
Channel 10	8	Fuel Pressure	J6	2
Channel 11	9	Oil Pressure	J7	2
Channel 12	10	Thermocouple Converter	J3	2
Channel 13	11	Thermocouple Converter	J3	3
Channel 14	12	Thermocouple Converter	J3	4
Channel 15	13	Thermocouple Converter	J3	5
Channel 16	14	Battery Voltage Monitor		
Channel 1	15	Engine RPM		
Channel 2	16	Wheel Speed	J5	2
Channel 3	17	Log Off/On Switch		
Channel 4	18			
Channel 5	19			
Channel 6	20			
+12 V Out	21	Sensor Power, +12V	Note 3	
Digital Out 1	22	0/5 VDC, (off/on)		
Digital Out 2	23	0/5 VDC, (off/on)		

#### Note: 1

System Ground is connected to the following

,		5
Sensor	Connector	Pin
Battery Minus		
Thermocouple Converter	73	7
Wheel Speed	J5	1
Fuel Pressure	J6	1
Oil Pressure	J7	1

#### Note: 2

System Power, +5V is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Thermocouple Converter	J3	1
Fuel Pressure	J6	3
Oil Pressure	J7	3

Note: 2

System Power, +12V is connected to the following

eneming		
Sensor	Connector	Pin
Thermocouple Converter	J3	6
Fuel Pressure	J6	4
Oil Pressure	J7	4

#### Connector Pin Out : Circle Track / Road Racing and Advanced Systems

Connector J1	Pin	Function	Connector	Pin
Тх	1	Serial Data To PC to J2	J4	2
Rx	2	Serial Data From PC to J2	J4	3
Return	3	Serial Data Return	J4	5
Battery	4	+12V System Power	Battery Plus	
Ground	5	Sysytem Ground	Note 1	
+5 V Out	6	Sensor Power, +5V	Note 2	
Channel 9	7	Accelerometer, (Long)		
Channel 10	8	Accelerometer, (Lat)		
Channel 11	9	Fuel Pressure	J6	2
Channel 12	10	Oil Pressure	J7	2
Channel 13	11	Transmission Pressure	J8	2
Channel 14	12	Brake/Nitrous Pressure	J9	2
Channel 15	13	Analog	(Spare)	
Channel 16	14	Battery Voltage Monitor		
Channel 1	15	Engine RPM		
Channel 2	16	Shaft speed 1	J5	2
Channel 3	17	Shaft speed 2	J3	2
Channel 4	18	Data Log On/Off		
Channel 5	19	Digital input	(Spare)	
Channel 6	20	Digital input	(Spare)	
+12 V Out	21	Sensor Power, +12V	Note 3	
Digital Out 1	22	0 or +5V (Off or ON)	(Spare)	
Digital Out 2	23	0 or +5V (Off or ON)	(Spare)	
Gnd	1	Sensor ground	Note 4	
Channel 17	2	EGT 1	J10	2
Channel 18	3	EGT 2	J10	3
Channel 19	4	EGT 3	J10	4
Channel 20	5	EGT 4	J10	5
Channel 21	6	EGT 5	J11	2
Channel 22	7	EGT 6	J11	3
Channel 23	8	EGT 7	J11	4
Channel 24	9	EGT 8	J11	5
Channel 25	10	Oil Temperature	J12	2
Channel 26	11	Coolant Temp.	J12	3
Channel 27	12	Nitrous Temp.	J12	4
Channel 28	13	Temp, Spare	J12	5
+12 V Out	14	+12 V Sensor Power	Note 5	
+12 V Out	15	+12 V Sensor Power	J12	6
+5 V Out	16	+5 V Sensor Power	Note 6	
+5 V Out	17	+5 V Sensor Power	J12	1
Channel 29	18	Analog	(Spare)	
Channel 30	19	Analog	(Spare)	
Channel 31	20	Analog	(Spare)	-
Channel 32	21	Analog	(Spare)	
Gnd	22	Sensor Ground	J12	7
Gnd	23	Sensor Ground	(Spare)	
			,	

#### Note: 1

System Ground (J1 Pin5) is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Battery Minus		
Fuel Pressure	J6	1
Oil Pressure	J7	1
Transmission Pressure	J8	1
Brake/Nitrous Pressure	J9	1
Shaft Speed 1	J5	1
Shaft Speed 2	J3	1

#### Note: 4

Sensor Power +12V (J2 Pin14) is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Left Rear Susp. Travel	J11	4
Right Rear Susp. Travel	J12	4

#### Note: 2 Sensor Power +5V (J1 Pin6) is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Fuel Pressure	J6	3
Oil Pressure	J7	3
Transmission Pressure	78	3
Brake/Nitrous Pressure	J9	3

Note: 5 Sensor Power +5V (12

Sensor Power +5V (J2 Pin16) is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Left Rear Susp. Travel	J11	3
Right Rear Susp. Travel	J12	3

#### Note: 3

Sensor Power +12V (J1 Pin21) is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Fuel Pressure	J6	4
Oil Pressure	J7	4
Transmission Pressure	78	4
Brake/Nitrous Pressure	J9	4

Note: 6

Sensor Ground (J2 Pin22) is connected to the following

Sensor	Connector	Pin
Left Rear Susp. Travel	J11	1
Right Rear Susp. Travel	J12	1

#### Pin Assignments, Maximum Configuration

Connector J1	Pin	Function
Тх	1	Serial Data To PC
Rx	2	Serial Data From PC
Battery	3	+12V System Power
Power Ground	4	System Power Ground
Ground	5	Sensor Ground, (Note 1)
+5 V Out	6	Sensor Power, +5V, (Note 2)
Channel 9	7	Accelorometer (Long) (Note 4)
Channel 10	8	Accelorometer (Lat) (Note 4)
Channel 11	9	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 12	10	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 13	11	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 14	12	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 15	13	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 16	14	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 1	15	Digital input 0 - 12 VDC
Channel 2	16	Digital input 0 - 12 VDC
Channel 3	17	Digital input 0 - 12 VDC
Channel 4	18	Digital input 0 - 12 VDC
Channel 5	19	Digital input 0 - 12 VDC
Channel 6	20	Digital input 0 - 12 VDC
+12 V Out	21	Sensor Power, +12V,, (Note 3)
Digital Out 1	22	0 or +5V (Off or ON)
Digital Out 2	23	0 or +5V (Off or ON)

Commonstern 10	D!	E
Connector J2	PIN	Function
Gnd	1	System ground, (Note 1)
Channel 17	2	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 18	3	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 19	4	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 20	5	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 21	6	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 22	7	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 23	8	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 24	9	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 25	10	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 26	11	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 27	12	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 28	13	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
+12 V Out	14	+12 V Sensor Power, (Note 3)
+12 V Out	15	+12 V Sensor Power, (Note 3)
+5 V Out	16	+5 V Sensor Power, (Note 2)
+5 V Out	17	+5 V Sensor Power, (Note 2)
Channel 29	18	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 30	19	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 31	20	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Channel 32	21	Analog Sensor, 0 - 10 VDC
Gnd	22	System ground, (Note 1)
Gnd	23	System ground, (Note 1)
L		

Note 1: Sensor Ground is connected to all sensor and is used as a zero reference: See specific user manuals for details

- Note 2: Sensor Power +5V, is connected to various sensors as required and is used as a voltage reference. See specific user manuals for details.
- Note 3: +12 V Sensor Power is connected to various sensors as required and is used as a voltage reference. See specific user manuals for details.
- Note 4: Channels 9 and 10 may be used as general purpose analog channels. Reset jumpers accordingly (Page 45).

#### QwikData Jumper Configuration

#### Basic, Bracket and Import Drag Race Packages

	Factory Default Settings	Alternative Settings
J4	No jumper. (Ch 1)	1-2. Pull-up to 12V (Ch 1)
		2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 1)
J16	1-2 Enable Battery Voltage Measurement	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 16
J15	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 10	1-2 Enable Accelerometer 2 (Ch 10)
J14	1-2. Enable Accelerometer 1 (Ch 9)	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 9
J16	1-2 Enable Battery Voltage Measurement	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 16
J9	1-2. Ch 2 (Has Pull-up to 12V)	2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 2)
J8	No jumper. Ch 6	1-2. Pull-up to 12V (Ch 6)
		2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 6)
J7	1-2. Ch 5. (Has Pull-up to 12V)	2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 5)
J6	2-3. Ch 4 (Has Pull-down to Ground)	1-2. Pull-up to 12V (Ch 4)
J5	1-2. Ch 3 (Has Pull-up to 12V)	2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 3)



## QwikData Jumper Configuration

Advanced Drag Race and Circle Track / Road Race Packages

	Factory Default Settings	Alternative Settings
J4	No jumper. (Ch 1)	1-2. Pull-up to 12V (Ch 1)
		2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 1)
J16	1-2 Enable Battery Voltage Measurement	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 16
J15	1-2 Enable Accelerometer 2 (Ch 10)	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 10
J14	1-2. Enable Accelerometer 1 (Ch 9)	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 9
J16	1-2 Enable Battery Voltage Measurement	2-3. Enable external input for Ch 16
J9	1-2. Ch 2 (Has Pull-up to 12V)	2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 2)
J8	No jumper. Ch 6	1-2. Pull-up to 12V (Ch 6)
		2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 6)
J7	1-2. Ch 5. (Has Pull-up to 12V)	2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 5)
J6	1-2. Pull-up to 12V (Ch 4)	2-3. Ch 4 (Has Pull-down to Ground)
J5	1-2. Ch 3 (Has Pull-up to 12V)	2-3. Pull-down to ground (Ch 3)



Description	Part No.
Basic QwikData Data Logger	91100
Advanced QwikData Data Logger	91101
Basic / Bracket / Import Wiring Harness	
Advanced Wiring Harness	91104
Circle Track / Road Racing Wiring Harness	91129
0-100 psi Pressure Sensors	91112
0-500 psi Pressure Transducer	91113
0-2500 psi Pressure Transducer	91114
Exhaust Gas Temp. Thermocouples	91109
General Purpose Thermocouples	91110
TK-4 Thermocouple Converter Box	91108
Thermocouple Extension Cables	91111
Wheel/Shaft Speed Sensor	91116
Speed Sensor Magnets	91117
Analog Input Extension Harness	91106
Desktop Wiring Harness	91107
Non-Contact Thermocouple	91120
String Potentiometer	91123
Linear Potentiometer	91124
Fuel Flow Meter	91125
Throttle Position Linear Potentiometer	91127
QwikData Software & Documentation CD	



Edelbrock Corporation 2700 California Street Torrance, CA 90503 Toll-Free Tech Line: 800-416-8628 Office: 310-781-2222 Tech E-Mail: edelbrock@edelbrock.com